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INTERNATIONAL ENERGY INSURANCE PLC 
  
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 
 
 
 

 
Group 

 
Company 

 

       

 2019 2018  2019 2018  
 N’000 N’000 % N’000 N’000 % 

Major statement of financial position items       

As at December 31:       
       

Total assets 8,755,366 7,598,656 15 8,636,224 7,551,962 14 
Insurance contract liabilities 4,053,715 3,956,877 2 4,053,715 3,956,877 2 
Total deficit (10,634,447) (11,870,643) (10) (10,575,108) (11,797,474) (10) 

       
Major statement of profit or loss items       
For the year ended December 31:       
       
Gross written premium 525,947 459,596 14 525,947 463,059 14 

Underwriting results  103,296 (157,693) (166) 103,296 (154,387) (167) 
Investment and other operating income, net realized, fair value 
changes and Interest Revenue 1,719,279 848,517 

 
103 859,121 53,223 

 
1514 

Profit/(loss) before income tax expense 308,115 (3,995,596) (108) 276,230 (3,981,220) (107) 
Income tax expense (32,726) (183,111) (82) (8,816) (183,866) (95) 
Profit/(loss) for the year 275,399 (4,178,707) (107) 267,414 (4,165,086) (106) 
    

  
 

Net liabilities per share (kobo)                        (824)   (938)  (820) (918)  
    

  
 

Loss Per Share:     
  

 

Basic and Diluted loss per share (Kobo) 24 (325)  24 (324)  
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 
 

The Directors submit their Report on the affairs of International Energy Insurance Plc (“the Company”) and its 
subsidiary, (collectively “the Group”) together with the consolidated and separate financial statements for the year 
ended December 31, 2019. 
 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW 

 

The principal activities of International Energy Insurance Plc are the provision of general business risk underwriting 
and related financial services to corporate and retail customers. The Company has 81% shareholding in IEI Anchor 
Pensions Managers Limited. IEI Anchor Pensions Managers Limited is engaged in Pension Fund Administration for 
employees in the private and public sector.  
 
RESULTS FOR THE YEAR            Group                      Company  

                     N'000            N'000            N'000           N'000 
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense                    308,115             (3,995,596)              276,230           (3,981,220) 
Income tax expense                                                 (32,726)                (183,111)                (8,816)              (183,866) 
                                                                  -----------------           ----------------          -----------------        ----------------- 
Profit/loss for the year                                               275,399             (4,178,707)              267,414           (4,165,086) 
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  
for the year, net of tax                                               469,804                  (71,645)              469,804                (71,645) 
                                                                  -----------------            ----------------        ------------------         ---------------- 
Total comprehensive profit/(loss)for the year           745,193              (2,319,906)             737,218           (2,357,199)         
                                                               ==========           =========         ==========        ========= 
DIVIDEND  
 

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for the year ended December 31, 2019 (2018: Nil). 
 
EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE  
 

There are no events after the reporting date, which could have had a material effect on the financial position of the 
Group and the Company as at December 31, 2019 and the profit for the year then ended. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

The following are members of the Interim board of Directors who held office during the year and at the date of this 
report, these directors were appointed by NAICOM: 
Mr. Muhammad K. Ahmad, OON  - Interim Chairman 
Mr. Peter Irene    - Interim Managing Director (Resigned on 20th Dec 2020) 
Mr. Ebunolu Ayeni   - Ag. Managing Director (Appointed on 20th Dec 2020) 
Ms. Ibiyemi B. Adeyinka   - Interim Non-Executive Director 
Ms. Daisy Ekineh    - Interim Non-Executive Director 
 
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS 

 
In accordance with Section 277 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation 
of Nigeria, none of the Directors has notified the Company of any declarable interest in contracts during the year. 
   
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES 

 
The Directors’ direct and indirect interests in the issued share capital of the Company are as follows: 
 
Directors             2019          2018 

Mr. Muhammad K. Ahmad (OON)    -   - 
Mr. Peter Irene      -   - 

Mr. Ebunolu Ayeni     -   - 

Ms. Ibiyemi B. Adeyinka          38,888        38,888 
Ms. Daisy Ekineh      -   - 
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - CONTINUED 
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

 
AGENTS AND BROKERS         

 
The Group maintains a network of licensed agents. The Group also renders services directly to its customers as well 
as through a varied network of brokers who are licensed by the National Insurance Commission (NAICOM).       
  
COMPLAINTS MANAGEMENT POLICY FRAMEWORK 

 
Complaint Management Policy has been prepared in compliance with the requirement of the Nigerian Capital Market 
(SEC Rules) issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission and the Nigerian Stock Exchange Directives (the 
NSE Directives) as well as in recognition of the importance of effective engagement in promoting 
shareholders/investors' confidence in the Company and the capital market. 
 
REINSURANCE  

       
The Group had reinsurance treaty arrangements with the following companies during the year:    
 
- African Reinsurance Corporation  - Continental Reinsurance Plc.   
- WAICA Reinsurance Corporation Plc. - Nigerian Reinsurance Corporation  
- CICA Reinsurance Company  - PTA/ZEP Reinsurance Company  
- NCA Reinsurance Company      
 
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT         

        
The Group is not involved in any research and development activities.     
        
DISABLED PERSONS         

        
The Group believes in giving full and fair consideration to all current and prospective staff. No disabled person (2018: 
Nil) is currently employed by the Group. There are procedures in respect for those employees who became disabled, 
to be assigned duties that are commensurate to their disabilities. 
 
GIFTS AND DONATIONS  

 
The Group made no charitable donations (2018: Nil) during the year under review.  
 
 
HEALTH AND SAFETY AT WORK OF EMPLOYEES 

 
The Group places a high premium on the health and welfare of its employees. Medical facilities are provided for the 
staff and their families at private hospitals retained within the respective localities of the staff residence through Group’s 
appointed Health Management Organizations (HMO). Firefighting equipment has also been installed in strategic 
positions within the offices of the Group. The Group incurred a sum of N 6.8million (2018: N13.5 million) and Company 
N 6.8million (2018: N13.5 million) in providing such medical benefits during the year.   
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - CONTINUED 
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

 
EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT AND TRAINING 

 
In addition to in-house training, the Group, where necessary sends its employees on various seminars, conferences, 
workshops and courses both locally and abroad. The staff are encouraged to improve themselves academically in any 
chosen profession, which is relevant to their job. The Group refunds a substantial proportion of all expenses incurred 
on such courses on the successful completion of the course. The Group incurred N5.4million (2018: N7.8million) on 
employees training during the year. 
 

AUDITORS 

 

Messrs. Doyin Owolabi & Co (Chartered Accountants) were appointed as auditors on 27 July 2020 and have indicated 
their willingness to continue in office as auditors of the Company in accordance with Section 357 (2) the Companies 
and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria. 
 
 
Order of the Interim Board 
 
 
 
 
March 2021 
 
H. Michael & Co. 
Company Secretary 
FRC/2013/NBA/00000001060 
Lagos, Nigeria 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

 
Management Objectives 

 
International Energy Insurance Plc is the first energy-sector focused insurance company in the country providing first 
class underwriting solutions for offshore, onshore as well as general business risks using a combination of strategic 
initiatives and excellent service delivery. 
 
We are a market oriented Company that focuses on customers’ satisfaction. Our business model is “Superior Service 
Delivery” which is customer–centric. It is aimed at meeting and surpassing the expectations of internal and external 
customers'.   
 
Management focus in the period to come is to adopt initiatives and actions that will guarantee the growth of the 
Company including introducing additional capital necessary to reposition the Company. 
 
Management Strategy 
 

The Company's strategy is to use technology and international best practice and superior services to provide its 
customers with tailor made solutions. The Company has put series of measures, initiatives and target aimed at 
profitable growth and increase market share. The Company aspire to achieve market leadership in all segment of the 
business. 

 

Operating Results 

          Group       Company 
2019          2018          2019          2018 
N'000          N'000          N'000          N'000  
 

Gross Premium written    525,947         459,596       525,947             463,059  

Profit/(loss) before income tax expense  308,115    (3,995,596)       276,230             3,981,220) 

Income tax expense    (32,726)       (183,111)        (8,816)                (183,866) 

Profit/(loss) for the year    275,399     (4,178,707)       267,414    (4,165,086)    
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

In line with our commitment to the principles of good governance, ethics, probity and professionalism, we continue to 
be transparent in our business transactions through compliance with ethics and statutory provisions and laws relating 
to insurance business to achieve our corporate objectives. One of the recent attempts of the Federal Government at 
improving the business environment in Nigeria was the establishment of the Nigerian Code of Corporate Governance 
2018 which took effect from January 2020. Together with the sectorial codes guiding the operations of the Insurance 
Industry, we have constantly worked at ensuring meeting the statutory compliance standards of the codes and extant 
legal provisions within the insurance industry. 

 
IEI operates its business within the framework of appropriate rules and regulations under which it was incorporated, as 
well as global best practices, corporate governance codes and guidelines released by relevant regulatory authorities 
such as the National Insurance Commission, the Nigerian Stock Exchange and the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 

 
These best practices have indeed been an integral part of how we now conduct our business affirming our belief that 
good corporate governance is a means of retaining and expanding our clientele, sustaining the viability of the business 
in the long term and maintaining the confidence of investors. IEI believes that the attainment of its business objectives 
is, among others, directly aligned to good corporate behavior as it provides stability and growth to the enterprise.  In 
line with this objective and the need to meet its responsibility to its stakeholders, the Company strives to meet the 
expectations of its operating environment. That is why we have continued to challenge ourselves and to reinvent our 
processes to effectively tackle the unfolding challenges and exploit emerging opportunities. In spite of our current 
challenges, we are determined to remain an important player in the industry. 

 
The Company has put in place systems of internal control and risk management to safeguard the interest of all 
stakeholders. As indicated in the statement of responsibility of Directors and notes to the Financial Statements, IEI 
adopts standard accounting practices to engender transparency in the disclosure of information and to give assurance 
to the reliability of the financial statements. 

 
ETHICAL STANDARDS 

To maintain high ethical standard for the conduct of its business, IEI ensures that each director and employee discloses 
to the board his/her interest in any other company within the insurance industry and in position where their self-interest 
conflict with their duty to act in the best interest of the Company. 

 
 

CORPORATE STRUCTURE 

 
Shareholders Meeting 
The Company in actualization of its corporate governance objectives recognizes its shareholders as the highest 
decision making body in line with the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association. The Annual General 
Meeting of the Company by statutory requirement is to be held once in a year. An Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of 
the Company may be convened at the behest of the Board or shareholders holding not less than 10% of the Company’s 
paid up capital. Attendance at these meetings is open to shareholders and/or their proxies and sufficient notice is given 
to ensure maximum attendance of the shareholders. IEI held its 42nd Annual General Meeting on February 23, 2017 
and decisions affecting the strategic development and direction of the Company were taken under the watchful eyes of 
representatives of regulatory authorities such as the National Insurance Commission, Nigerian Stock Exchange, 
Securities and Exchange Commission and members of the press.   

 
The Board of Directors of International Energy Insurance Plc has overall responsibility for ensuring that the highest 
standard of corporate governance are maintained and adhered to by the Company. The following structures have been 
put in place for the execution of corporate governance strategy: 

 
1) Board of Directors 
2) Board Committees 
3) Management 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

During the period under review, the Board met to set policies for the operations of the Company, and ensured that it 
maintained a professional relationship with the Company’s Auditors to promote transparency in financial and non-
financial reporting.   
The Interim Board met three times within the year under review. Within the same period its Finance and General 
Purpose Committee met five times and the Statutory Audit Committee met three times. The Interim Board Members 
are:  

  
Mr. Muhammad K. Ahmad (OON) - Interim Chairman 
Mr. Peter Irene   - Interim Managing Director 
Ms. Ibiyemi B. Adeyinka  - Interim Non-Executive Director 
Ms. Daisy Ekineh   - Interim Non-Executive Director 
H. Michael & Co   - Company Secretary 
 

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR 

The manner in which the Company structured the roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director has assisted in 
averting overlaps of roles and effectiveness of governance. This is done in accordance with NAICOM guidelines on 
Code of Good Corporate Governance for insurance industry. 
 
The Chairman has the primary responsibility of ensuring that the board carries out its governance role in the most 
effective manner. He is responsible for the overall leadership of board and for creating an enabling environment for the 
effectiveness of individual directors. The Managing Director is responsible for the day to day running of the Company 
to achieve overall efficiency of management controls. He has responsibilities for developing, implementing and 
monitoring the strategic and financial plans of the Company in the most effective manner. 
 
 
ROLE OF THE BOARD 

 Establish corporate strategies, set performance indices, monitor implementation and performances 
 Review alignment of goals, major plans of action and annual budget 
 Ensure the integrity of the Company accounting and financial reporting systems (including the 

independent audit) and that appropriate system are in place for monitoring risks financial control and 
compliance with the law 

 Formulate risk strategies and make decisions on business acquisitions and expansions/investments 
into foreign markets 

 Ensure that the interests of the stakeholders are balanced 
 Ensure that the Company’s operations are in accordance with high business and ethical standards 

 
The Board meets regularly to review financial performance and reports on the contribution of the various business units 
to the overall performance of the company as well as consider other matters. Adequate advance notice of the meeting, 
the agenda and reports to be considered are circulated to members. Emergency meetings are convened as and when 
the need arises.  
 
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE   

In accordance with Section 284(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020, the record of the Directors attendance 
at Directors and Committee meetings during the year under review is as shown below.  
 

S/N DATE OF 
MEETING 

MUHAMMAD K. 
AHMAD (OON) 

DAISY EKINEH IBIYEMI B. 
ADEYINKA  

PETER IRENE 

1.  16/05/2019         

2.  07/08/2019         

3.  15/11/2019         

 
 
BOARD COMMITTEES   

 
The Interim Board carried out its oversight functions with the assistance of the Board Committee; namely The Finance 
and General Purposes Committee  
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BOARD FINANCE AND GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 

 
The Board Finance and General Purposes Committee had the mandate to review and make recommendations on all 
staff and related matters, approve within set limits, review and make recommendations on branch expansions and/or 
closures, implement safeguarded measures as recommended from time to time, and to ensure an adequate platform 
by which the company will adequately protect its finances. Other functions of the Committee include but not limited to, 
determining the policies, strategies and financial objectives of the company, overseeing and monitoring the 
implementation of these policies, with a view to maximizing its overall economic value. It also reviews the community, 
environmental, health and safety issues and incidents to determine, that management takes appropriate action in 
respect of those matters and that management is diligent in carrying out its responsibilities and activities in relation to 
sustainability issues. 
 
The members of the Committee met five times within the year under review, they are as follows; 
       Ms. Daisy Ekineh   Interim Chairman 

Ms. Ibiyemi B. Adeyinka  Interim Non-Executive Director 
Mr. Peter Irene   Interim Managing Director 
H. Michael & Co   Secretary 
 

 

S/N DATE OF 
MEETING 

DAISY EKINEH IBIYEMI B. 
ADEYINKA  

PETER IRENE 

1.  07/02/2019       

2.  20/03/2019       

3.  16/05/2019       

4.  25/09/2019       

5.  06/11/2019       

 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE       

In compliance with the provisions of Section 359 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C20, LFN 2004, the 
Company had an Audit Committee comprised of two (2) Non-executive Directors and two (2) shareholders’ 
representatives as follows: 
 
Mr. Augustine Anono   Chairman 
Mr. Moses Igbrude   Shareholders ’representative 
Ms. Daisy Ekineh    Non-executive Director 
Ms. Ibiyemi Adeyinka   Non-executive Director  
 
In compliance with the amended provision of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020(as amended) the company 
shall propose a reconstitution of the Audit Committee to be comprised of three members and two Non-Executive 
Directors. 
 
The Committee met three (3) times during the year under review as shown below  
 

S/N DATE OF 
MEETING 

DAISY EKINEH IBIYEMI B. 
ADEYINKA  

AUGUSTINE 
ANONO 

MOSES 
IGBRUDE 

1.  16/05/2019     X   

2. 31/07/2019         

3. 06/11/2019         

 
 
 
DIRECTORS NOMINATION PROCESS 

The Board of Directors of the Company is currently an interim board appointed by the National Insurance Commission 
(NAICOM) in 2015 following the dissolution of the erstwhile Board of Directors. The tenure of the Board has been 
extended by NAICOM. 
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THE MANAGEMENT TEAM      

The Management team consists of Executive and Senior Management Staff led by the Interim Managing Director. It 
formulates programmes and assigns responsibilities and resources for the achievement of set goals. The Management 
team is also charged with the responsibility of identifying and assessing the risk profile within which the Company is 
operating, with a view to eliminating or minimizing the impact of such risks to the achievement of set Company 
objectives.  
 
Other functions of the Management team include; determining the long term strategic direction of the company and 
developing annual business plan and budget that drives the long term strategy, ensuring that the company complies 
with all relevant laws and corporate governance principles, ensuring proper staffing and establishment of appropriate 
organizational structure that support effective succession plan for the company, putting the right structure in place to 
ensure that accounts and financial affairs are carried out in a reliable manner. The Management also take steps to 
ensure successful implementation of the company’s policies as well as creating effective ethical environment within the 
company. The leadership team meets regularly to review the performance of the Company, and assess progress 
against the achievement of laid down objectives. 
 
 
COMPLIANCE AND DISCLOSURE 

As a result of the determination of the Interim Board to reposition the Company’s operations within international 
standards of best practices, the Company made significant efforts to ensure compliance with applicable regulatory 
requirements.  Certain infractions were however found due to late submission of the Company’s Audited Financial 
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019. 

 
Penalties levied against the Company for late submission of financial statements as mentioned above by the regulators 
amounted to N14.3million. Details of these payments are recorded on note 51 in the financial statements. 

 
This disclosure of non-compliance is in conformity with the provisions of Appendix III, Clause 14 (g) of the Nigerian 
Stock Exchange Rules which requires companies to state in the Annual Report contraventions and sanctions imposed 
for such contraventions. The Interim Board is however paying concerted attention to eliminate incidences of infractions.  
 
The company in the course of the current year took certain corporate actions that were duly disclosed and announced 
to the investing public through the Nigerian Stock Exchange portal. These included the resignation of the Interim 
Managing Director with effect from December 20, 2020 and subsequent appointment of a new Interim Managing 
Director whose appointment is subject to the ratification of NAICOM and the Shareholders. 
 

 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The company had its share of the aftermath of the total lockdown of Nigeria’s economy because of Covid 19 global 
Pandemic. The company made contributions to its immediate environment to control the spread of the disease. 
 

  
HEALTH AND SAFETY AT WORK FOR EMPLOYEES 

The Company ensured that the robust HSE plan, process and procedure that had been previously put in place was 
reviewed for improvements and maintained for the safety of its workforce which has reduced work related discomfort, 
accidents and injury, litigation and non-compliance issues. Consequently, the employees have become more confident 
as regards their health and wellbeing in the manner, which the Company has invested in HSE issues, that has reduced 
overtime, health related costs to the Company as well.  
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 
 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 60(2) OF THE INVESTMENT AND SECURITIES ACT N0. 29 2007 

 
We the undersigned hereby certify the following with regards to our consolidated and separate financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2019 that: 
 

 We have reviewed the report; 
 

 To the best of our knowledge, the report does not contain: 
(i) Any untrue statement of a material fact, or 
(ii) Omit to state a material fact, which would make the statements, misleading in the light of 

circumstances under which such statements were made; 

 To the best of our knowledge, the consolidated and separate financial statements and other financial 
information included in the report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Group and Company as of, and for the period presented in the report; 
 

 We: 
(i) are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls; 
(ii) have designed such internal controls to ensure that material information relating to the Company is 

made known to such officers by others within those entities particularly during the period in which the 
periodic reports are being prepared; 

(iii) have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls as of date within 90 days prior to 
the report; 

(iv) have presented in the report our conclusions about the effectiveness of our internal controls based on 
our evaluation as of that date; 

 

 We have disclosed to the auditors of the Company and the Audit Committee: 
(i) all significant deficiency in the design or operations of internal controls which would adversely affect 

the Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for 
the Company’s auditors any material weakness in internal controls, and 

(ii) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have 
significant role in the Company’s internal controls; 

 

 We have identified in the report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or other factors 
that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our evaluation, including any corrective 
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. 

 
 
 
………………………………………………..   ……………………………………………………. 
Mr. Ebunolu Ayeni     Mr. Emmanuel Bassey 
Ag. Managing Director     Chief Financial Officer 
FRC/2015/CIIN/00000011052    FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000635 
 

15 Feb 2021 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT DECLARATION 

 
The Board of International Energy Insurance Plc hereby provides a Risk Management Declaration and state that, to 
the best of its knowledge and belief, having made appropriate enquiries: 
 
a. The Group and Company have systems in place for the purpose of ensuring compliance with this guideline; 

 
b. The Board is satisfied with the efficacy of the processes and systems surrounding the production of financial 

information of the Group and Company; 
 
c. The Group and Company have in place Risk Management Strategy, developed in accordance with the 

requirements of this guideline, setting out its approach to risk management; and 
 
d. The systems that are in place for managing and monitoring risks, and the risk management framework, are 

appropriate to the Company, having regard to such factors as the size, business mix and complexity of the Group 
and Company's operations. 

 
 
 
 
………………………………………….………..   ……………………………………………………. 
Mr. Muhammad K. Ahmad, OON    Mr. Ebunolu Ayeni 
Interim Chairman       Ag. Managing Director 
FRC/2015/IODN/00000012581    FRC/2015/CIIN/00000011052   
    

 
  15 Feb 2021 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 
 
REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
To the members of International Energy Insurance Plc.: 
 
In accordance with the provision of Section 359 (6) of the Companies and Allied Matters, Act CAP C20, Laws of the 
Federation of Nigeria 2004, the members of the Audit Committee of International Energy Insurance Plc hereby report 
as follows: 
 

 We have exercised our statutory functions under Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters, Act 
CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004 and acknowledge the co-operation of management and 
staff in the conduct of these responsibilities. 
 

 We are of the opinion that the accounting and reporting policies of the Group and the Company are in 
accordance with legal requirements and agreed ethical practices and that the scope and planning of both the 
external and internal audit for the year ended December 31 2019 were satisfactory and reinforce the Group’s 
and the internal control systems. 
 

 We have deliberated with the External Auditors, who have confirmed that necessary co-operation was 
received from management in the course of their statutory audit and we are satisfied with the management’s 
response to the External Auditor's recommendations on accounting and internal control matters and with the 
effectiveness of the Group's system of accounting and internal control. 

 
 
 
………………………………………….. 
Chief Augustine G. Anono 
Chairman, Audit Committee 
FRC/2020/002/00000020618 
15 Feb 2021 
 
Members of the Audit Committee are: 

1. Chief Augustine G. Anono  - Chairman 
2. Mr. Moses Igbrude   - Member 
3. Ms. Ibiyemi B. Adeyinka   - Member 
4. Ms. Daisy Ekineh   - Member 
 
 
Secretary to the Committee 

H. Michael & Co. 
Company Secretary 
FRC/2013/NBA/00000001060 
Lagos, Nigeria 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 
INTERNATIONAL ENERGY INSURANCE PLC 

16 

 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 
 
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RELATION TO THE PREPARATION OF THE 
CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, requires the Directors to 
prepare consolidated financial statements for each financial year that present fairly, in all material respects, the state 
of financial affairs of the Company and its subsidiary at the end of the year and of its profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. The responsibilities include ensuring that the Company and its subsidiary: 

 
a) keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the 

Company and its subsidiary and comply with the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP 
C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004; 

 
b) establishes adequate internal controls to safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect fraud                                                                                                                                                                                                             

and other irregularities; and 
 

c) prepares its consolidated and separate financial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates and are consistently applied. 

 
The Directors accept responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgments and estimates, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the relevant provisions 
of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, the Insurance Act 2003, the 
relevant policy guidelines issued by the National Insurance Commission (NAICOM), the Pension Reform Act 2014 and 
Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No. 6, 2011. 

 
The Directors are of the opinion that the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the state of the financial affairs of the Company and its subsidiary as at 31 December 2019, and   of their financial 
performance for the year ended then. Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Company 
and its subsidiary will not remain a going concern for at least twelve months from the date of this statement. 
  

 
 

On behalf of the Directors  

 
 
 
 
………………………………………………..   ……………………………………………………. 
Mr. Muhammad K. Ahmad, OON    Mr. Ebunolu Ayeni 
Interim Chairman       Ag. Managing Director  
FRC/2015/IODN/00000012581    FRC/2015/CIIN/00000011052  
 

 15 February 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT    
 

TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL ENERGY INSURANCE PLC 
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of International Energy Insurance Plc (“the Company”) 
and its subsidiary (collectively “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as 
at December 31 2019, and the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss, consolidated and separate  statements 
of other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity and  consolidated and separate 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies.  
 
In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and 
separate financial position of the Company and its subsidiary as at December 31  2019 and their financial performance and 
their cash flows for the year then ended and have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and the relevant provisions of the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, the Insurance Act 2003 and the relevant 
policy guidelines issued by the National Insurance Commission (NAICOM), the Pensions Reform Act 2014 and the Financial 
Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No. 6, 2011. 
 
Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable 
to performing audit of International Energy Insurance Plc. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
the IESBA Code, and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing the audit of International Energy 
Insurance Plc. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.  
 
Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern  
 
We draw attention to the fact that the Company’s total liabilities exceeded its total assets by N10.58 billion (2018: N11.80 billion) 
while the Group’s total liabilities exceeded its total assets by N10.64 billion (2018: N11.87 billion). In addition, the Company's 
negative total equity as at December 31, 2019 of N10.58 billion (2018: N11.80 billion) is below the minimum regulatory 
requirement of N3 billion and the Company did not meet the regulatory solvency margin whilst there was a shortfall of N2.48 
billion (2018: N2.208billion) in the assets cover. The Company also had a negative solvency margin of (N14.384billion) as at 
December 31, 2019 (2018: N14.557billion). The Company recorded a negative operating cash flow of N85 million (2018: N677 
million) while the Group recorded a negative operating cash flow of N53 million (2018: N742 million). The Company no longer 
carries out oil and gas business and this led to its declining revenue over the years. The Company has also not been able to 
resolve issue relating to its obligations in respect of Daewoo loan. The note indicates that these conditions, along with other 
matters, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group and Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 
and separate financial statements of the current year. In addition to the matters described in the Material uncertainty related to 
going concern section of our report, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For 
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT    
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL ENERGY INSURANCE PLC – CONTINUED 
 
Key Audit Matters - continued 
 
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
and separate financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the 
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements. 
 

 
Key Audit Matters 

 
How the matter was addressed in the audit 

Valuation of Insurance Contract Liabilities. 

The Group through the parent Company has 
insurance contract liabilities of N4 billion as at 
December 31, 2019 (2018: N3.9 billion) representing 
2.4% (2018:25%) of the Group’s and the Company’s 
total liabilities. This is an area that involves significant 
judgment over uncertain future outcomes and 
therefore we considered it a key audit matter for our 
audit.  
 
Consistent with the insurance industry practice, the 
Company engages an actuary to test the adequacy of 
this valuation of non-life business as at year end. The 
complexity of the valuation models may give rise to 
errors as a result of inadequate/incomplete data or the 
design or application of the models. Economic 
assumptions such as interest rates and future inflation 
rates and actuarial assumptions such as customer 
behavior and uniform risk occurrence throughout the 
period are key inputs used to determine these 
liabilities. Significant judgment is applied in setting 
these assumptions. 
 
Insurance contract liabilities are disclosed in Note 12 
to the consolidated and separate financial 
statements. 
 

 
We used our in-house actuarial specialist to assist us in performing 
the audit procedures in the area of reviewing the Group’s’ Actuarial 
report on non-life business which included among others: 
 

i. Consideration of the appropriateness of assumptions used in 
the valuation of the Insurance Contracts by reference to 
company and industry data and expectations.  

ii. Consideration of the appropriateness of non-economic 
assumptions used in the valuation of the Insurance Contracts in 
relation to lapse or extension assumptions by reference to 
company specific and industry data. 

 
Other Key audit procedures included: 
 

i. We reviewed and documented management’s process for 
estimating insurance contracts. 

ii. We performed file review of specific underwriting contracts in 
order to maximize our understanding of the business and 
validate initial loss estimates. 

iii. We performed subsequent year claim payments to confirm the 
reasonableness of initial loss estimates. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT    
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL ENERGY INSURANCE PLC – CONTINUED 

 
Other Information 
 
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Financial Highlights, the Report 
of the Directors, Management Discussion and Analysis,   Report of the Audit Committee, Certification pursuant to section 60 
(2) of the Investment and Securities Act No. 29 2007,  Statement of Value Added and Five-Year Financial Summary as 
required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, and Corporate Governance 
Report as required by the Securities and Exchange Commission, which we obtained prior to the date of this report, and the 
Annual Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. Other information does not include the 
consolidated and separate financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  

 
Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and 
separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

 
When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate 
the matter to those charged with governance. 

 
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements  

 
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements 
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, as issued by the International Accounting Standard Board 
(IASB) and the relevant provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, 
the Insurance Act 2003 and the relevant policy guidelines issued by the National Insurance Commission (NAICOM), the 
Pensions Reform Act 2014 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No. 6, 2011 and for such internal control as the 
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated and separate financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
Going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or Company or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  

 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s and the Company’s financial reporting processes. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements  

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
INTERNATIONAL ENERGY INSURANCE PLC 
 

20 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT    
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE PLC – CONTINUED 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements – continued 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Directors. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.  

 
We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

 
We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

 
From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of 
the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT    
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE PLC – CONTINUED 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

 
In accordance with the requirement of Schedule 6 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation 
of Nigeria 2004, the Insurance Act 2003 and NAICOM’s Prudential Guidelines we confirm that: 
 

i. we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 

for the purpose of our audit; 

 
ii. proper books of account have been kept by the Company, in so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

 

iii. the Company’s statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are in 

agreement with the books of account. 

 
iv. In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, the Insurance 

Act 2003 and NAICOM’s Prudential Guidelines so as to present fairly the consolidated and separate statements of 

profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the Company and its subsidiary. 

 
Contravention of Regulatory Guidelines 

The Company incurred penalties in respect of contravention of the requirement of a section of the Investment & Securities Act 

(ISA) 2007, Rule 7.4 of the Nigerian Stock Exchange, 2015 and Section 26 of the Insurance Act 2003 in conjunction with the 

National Insurance Commission’s Prudential Guidelines for Insurers and Reinsurers, 2015 on the filing and submission of 

annual reports and accounts. The details of the contravention and penalty are disclosed in the Note 51 to the consolidated 

and separate of the financial statements.  

 

 

 
 

 

Lagos, Nigeria     Adedoyin Idowu Owolabi, FCA  

March 2021     FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000101 

For: Doyin Owolabi & Co.  
      (Chartered Accountants) 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. General Information 

 
The International Energy Insurance Plc (“the Company”) was incorporated as Nigeria Exchange Insurance Limited 
on 26 March 1969. The name was changed to Mutual Life and General Insurance Limited in 1995. In 2000, the 
name of the Company was changed to Global Assurance Limited. In 2003, the Company's name was changed to 
International Energy Insurance Limited following the acquisition of 70% of the shares of Global Assurance Limited 
by SKI Consult. The Company merged its operations with Rivbank Insurance Limited on 30 November 2006 with 
the name of the combined business changing to International Energy Insurance Plc., thereafter; the Company was 
listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange in 2007.    

 
The consolidated and separate financial statements of International Energy Insurance Plc. for the year ended 
December 31 2019 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution by the Board of Directors on 15 
February 2021. 

 
Principal activities 

The activities of the Company include general insurance business with special focus on Oil and Energy. The 
activities include insurance underwriting, claims administration and management of liquidity by investing the 
surplus in fixed deposits, bonds, held for trading and treasury bills. It has a subsidiary IEI Anchor Pensions 
Managers Limited which principal activity is pension funds administration for employees in private and public 
sectors. 

 
Going concern 

The Directors assess the Group’s future performance and financial position on a going concern basis and have no 
reason to believe that the Company and its subsidiary will not be a going concern in the year ahead as stated in 
Note 2.36.1. For this reason, these consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared on a going-
concern basis. 

 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated and separate financial 
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless 
otherwise stated. 

 
2.1 Basis of preparation and compliance with International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 

 
The consolidated and separate financial statements of International Energy Insurance Plc have been prepared on 
a going concern principles in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and interpretations issued by the International Financial 
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) interpretations, and the 
relevant provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, 
the Insurance Act 2003 and the relevant policy guidelines issued by the National Insurance Commission 
(NAICOM), the Pensions Reform Act 2014 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No. 6, 2011 to the 
extent that they are not in conflict with IFRS. 
 
These consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Nigerian Naira, rounded to the nearest 
thousand, and prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial assets measured at fair value 
through profit or loss, investment properties, equity instruments measured at fair value  through  Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI) and ‘land and building’ which have been measured at fair value.  

 
2.2 Basis of consolidation 

 
Subsidiary 

 
The financial statements of the subsidiary is consolidated from the date the Group acquires control, up to the date 
that the Group losses control.  
 
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) is attributed to the equity holders of the 
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having 
a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to reflect their 
accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.  
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED  

 
2.2 Basis of consolidation - continued 

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions 
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. 
 
For the purpose of these consolidated and separate financial statements, subsidiary is an entity over which 
the Group, directly or indirectly, has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain 
benefits from their activities. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable 
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power 
over the investee. 
 
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has: 
• Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of 
the investee) 
• Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee 
• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 

 
Accounting policies of the subsidiary have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the 
policies adopted by the Group. In the separate financial statements, investments in subsidiary is measured 
at cost.  
 
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this 
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the 
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, 
including: 
• The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee 
• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 
• The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights 
 

  

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with equity holders in their 
capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill is recognised as a result of such transactions. The 
adjustments to non-controlling interests are based on the proportionate amount of the net assets of the 
subsidiary. 

 
Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as 
equity transactions. 

     
2.3 Functional currency and translation of foreign currencies 
 

Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the consolidated and separate financial statements are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated and 
separate financial statements are presented in Nigerian Naira (NGN), which is the functional and 
presentation currency. 
 

 Transactions and balances in individual entities 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective entity using the 
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions or the date of valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from 
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are recognised in the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss. Foreign exchange 
gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated 
and separate statements of profit or loss within ‘finance costs or other income’.  
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 

 
2.4 Cash and cash equivalents   

    
For the purposes of the consolidated and separate statements of cash flows, cash comprises cash in hand 

and deposits held at call with banks. Cash equivalents comprise highly liquid investments (including money 

market funds) that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant 

risk of changes in value with original maturities of three months or less being used by the Company in the 

management of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the 

statement of financial position. 

2.5 Financial assets and financial liabilities 

2.5.1 Financial assets 

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories: fair value through profit or loss, fair 

value through other comprehensive income and amortized cost. The classification is determined by 

management at initial recognition and depends on the objective of the business model. 

Business Model Assessment 
 

Business model assessment involves determining if financial assets are managed in order to generate cash 
flows from collection of contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both. The Group assesses business 
model at a portfolio level which reflects how the assets are managed together to achieve a particular business 
objective. 

 
2.5.2 Classification and Measurements 

For the purpose of measuring a financial asset after initial recognition, IFRS 9 classifies financial assets into 
the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss; at fair value through other comprehensive income 
and at amortised cost. The classification is based on the results of the group's business model test and the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The category relevant to The Group as at 
December 31 2019 are fair value through profit or loss; at fair value through other comprehensive income and 
at amortised cost. At initial recognition all assets are measured at Fair Value. 

 
(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and those designated 
by The Group as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. Financial assets classified as held 
through profit or loss are those that have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term 
or repurchasing in the near term, or held as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit. 
 
Financial instruments included in this category are recognised initially at fair value; transaction costs are taken 
directly to profit or loss. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included directly in profit or 
loss and are reported as 'Net gains/ (losses) on financial assets classified as held for trading’. Interest income 
and expense and dividend income on financial assets held for trading are included in 'Discount and similar 
income’ or 'Other operating income’, respectively. Fair value changes relating to financial assets designated 
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in 'Net gains from financial assets held for trading’. 

 
(ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

 
Except for financial assets that are designated at initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, a 
financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if both of the following 
conditions are met:  

a. the financial asset .is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 

contractual  cash flows and selling financial assets (the business model test); and 

b. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flows 

characteristics test). 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 

 
2.5 Financial assets and financial liabilities 
 

(iii) Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

 

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if they are held within a business model whose objective is 

to hold for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal 

and interest. After initial measurement, debt instruments in this category are carried at amortized cost using 

the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium 

on acquisition, transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Amortization 

is included in Interest income in the Statement of Income. Impairment on financial assets measured at 

amortized cost is calculated using the expected credit toss approach. 

 

2.5.3 Recognition and measurement 

 

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus, in the case of all financial assets not carried at fair 

value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition. Financial 

assets carried at fair value through profit and loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs 

are expensed in the statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets are derecognised .when the rights 

to receive cash flows from them have expired or where they have been transferred and the Group has also 

transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 

 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value through 

profit and loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Other financial assets are carried at amortised cost using 

the effective interest method. 

 

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit and 

loss' category are included in. the income statement in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from 

financial assets at fair value through profit and loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 

as pan of Investment income when the Group's right to receive payments is established. 

 

Interest on financial assets fair value through other comprehensive income calculated using the effective 

interest method is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on equity instruments fair value through 

other comprehensive income are recognised in the income statement when the Group's right to receive 

payments is established. Both are included in the investment income line. 

 

 Determination of fair value 

  

For financial instruments traded in. active markets, the determination of fair values of financial assets and 

financial liabilities is based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. This includes listed equity 

securities and quoted debt instruments on major exchanges. The quoted market price used for financial assets 

held by the Group is the current bid price.  

 

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly 

available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry, company, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those 

prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. If the above 

criteria are not met, the market is regarded as being inactive. Indications that a market is inactive are when 

there is a. wide bid - offer spread or significant increase in the bid - offer spread or there are few recent 

transactions. 

 

For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. In these techniques, 

fair values are estimated from observable data in respect of similar financial instruments, using models to 

estimate the present value of expected future cash flows or other valuation techniques, using Inputs (for 

example, NIBOR, MPR etc.) existing at the dates of the statement of financial position. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 

 
2.5 Financial assets and financial liabilities 

 

The Group uses widely recognised money market rates in determining fair values of non-standardised financial 

instruments of lower complexity like placements, and treasury bills. These financial instruments models are 

generally market observable. The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables 

are assumed to approximate their fair values.  

 

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual 

cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments. In 

cases where the fair value of unlisted equity instruments cannot be determined reliably, the instruments are 

carried at cost less any impairment.   

 

The fair value for loans and receivables as well as liabilities to banks. and customers are determined using a 

present value model on the basis of contractually agreed cash flows, taking into account credit quality, liquidity 

and costs. The fair values of contingent liabilities and irrevocable loan commitments correspond to their 

carrying amounts. 

 
2.5.4 De-recognition of financial instruments 

 

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to 
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially alt the risks and rewards of ownership and 
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially alt the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also 
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

 
2.5.5   Reclassification of financial assets  

 
Reclassification of financial assets is determined by The Group's senior management, and is done as a result 
of external or internal changes which are significant to The Group's operations and demonstrable to external 
parties.  
 
Reclassification of financial assets occurs when The Entity changes its business model for managing financial 
assets investments in equity instruments that are designated as at FVTOCI at initial recognition cannot be 
reclassified because the election to designate as at FVTOCI is irrevocable. For financial .assets, reclassification 
is required between FVTPL, FVTOGI and amortised cost; if and only if the entity's business model objective for 
its financial assets changes so its previous business model assessment would no longer apply.  
 
IFRS 9 does not allow reclassification: 
 

 when the fair value option has been elected in any circumstance for a financial asset; 

 or equity investments (measured at FVTPL or FVTOCI); or 

 for financial liabilities. 
 

If an entity reclassifies a financial asset, it is required to apply the reclassification prospectively from the 
reclassification date, defined as the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model 
that results in the entity reclassifying financial assets. Previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment 
gains or losses) or interest are not restated, 
 
All impairment tosses are recognized through profit or toss. If any loss on the financial asset was previously 
recognized directly in equity as a reduction in fair value, the cumulative net loss that had been recognized in. 
equity is transferred to the income statement and is recognized as part of the impairment Pass. The amount of 
the loss recognized in the income statement is the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair 
value, less any previously recognized impairment loss. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 

 
2.5 Financial assets and financial liabilities – continued 
 
2.5.5 Financial Instrument - continued 

   
Impairment of financial assets 

 
The Group will assess on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit losses (“ECL”) associated with its 
debt instruments carried at amortized cost and FVOCI and with the exposure arising from loan commitments 
and financial guarantee contracts. 
 
No impairment is recognized on equity investments. This is because the fair value changes will incorporate 
impairment gains or losses if any. 

 
General Approach 
Under the general approach, at each reporting date, the Group recognizes a loss allowance based on either 
12-month ECLs or lifetime ECLs, depending on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on 
the financial instrument since initial recognition. The changes in the loss allowance balance are recognized in 
profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss. 

 
The amount of ECLs recognized as a loss allowance or provision depends on the extent of credit deterioration 
since initial recognition. Under the general approach, there are two measurement bases: 

 

 12-month ECLs (Stage 1), which applies to all items (from initial recognition) as long as there is no 
significant deterioration in credit quality. 
 

 Lifetime ECLs (Stages 2 and 3), which applies when a significant increase in credit risk has occurred 
on an individual or collective basis or when a loan becomes credit impaired respectively. 

 
Staging 

Stage 1: On origination, a financial asset (provided that it is not a purchased or originated credit impaired 
asset) will be in stage 1 of the general model for expected credit losses. Financial assets that have not had a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that (upon assessment and option selected by the 
Group) have low credit risk at the reporting date remain in stage 1.  

 
For these assets, 12-month expected credit losses (‘ECL’) are recognized and interest revenue is calculated 
on the gross carrying amount of the asset (that is, without deduction for credit allowance). 12-month ECL are 
the ECL that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. It is not the 
expected cash shortfalls over the 12-month period but the entire credit loss on an asset, weighted by the 
probability that the loss will occur in the next 12 months. 

 
Stage 2: Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition (unless 
they have low credit risk at the reporting date and this option is taken by the Group) but that do not have 
objective evidence of impairment. For these assets, lifetime ECL are recognized and interest revenue is still 
calculated on the gross carrying amount of the asset.  
 
Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the maximum contractual period    
during which the Group is exposed to credit risk. ECL are the weighted average credit losses, with the 
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.  

 
The Group, when determining whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly, 
considers reasonable and supportable (both historical and forward-looking) information available, in order to 
compare the risk of a default occurring at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring at initial 
recognition of the financial instrument. 

 
Stage 3: This includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. For 
these assets, lifetime ECLs are recognized and interest revenue is calculated on the net carrying amount (that 
is, net of credit allowance). This is done by applying the EIR in subsequent reporting periods to the amortized 
cost of the financial asset. 

 

When the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset, then the gross carrying 
amount of the financial asset can be directly reduced in its entirety via a write off. A write-off constitutes a 
derecognition event. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 

 
2.5 Financial assets and financial liabilities – continued 
 
2.5.5 Financial Instrument – continued 

 
Impairment of financial assets – continued 

 
Simplified approach 

The simplified approach does not require the Group to track the changes in credit risk, but, instead, requires 
the Group to recognize a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from 
origination. 

 
The Group recognizes lifetime ECLs at each reporting period for trade receivables or other receivables that 
result from transactions within the scope of IFRS 15 and that do not contain a significant financing 
component. 

 
Measurement of expected credit losses 

The standard defines credit loss as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the 
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e., all cash 
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. 

 
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument 
(i.e., the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights). 

 
When measuring ECLs, in order to derive an unbiased and probability-weighted amount, the Group would 
evaluate a range of possible outcomes. This involves identifying possible scenarios that specify: 

 
a. The amount and timing of the cash flows for particular outcomes 
b. The estimated probability of these outcomes 
c. Exposure at default (EAD): The EAD estimates the percentage of exposure the Group might lose if the   

borrower defaults. 
 

Probability of default (PD) 
12 Month PDs 
12 month PD is the probability of a loan defaulting within the next 12 months. 12-month PD estimates are 
required to calculate 12-month ECLs for accounts classified as Stage 1. These PD estimates also form the 
basis of the lifetime PD curves, which are required to calculate lifetime ECLs for accounts classified as 
Stage 2. 12 Months PD used is computed using the Group's data. 

 
Lifetime PDs 
Lifetime PD curves are required to calculate expected credit losses for Stage 2 accounts. Ideally, lifetime PD 
curves will be developed based on internal default data. However, the Company does not have sufficient 
history of internal default data to build credible curves so it has derived lifetime PD curves using S & P’s 
“2017 Annual Sovereign Default Study and Rating Transition”. 

 
Loss given default (LGD) 
LGD is the share of an asset that is lost when a borrower defaults. The recovery rate is defined as 1 minus 
the LGD, the share of an asset that is recovered when a borrower defaults. Loss given default is facility-
specific because such losses are generally understood to be influenced by key transaction characteristics 
such as the presence of collateral and the degree of subordination.  

 
Exposure at default (EAD) 
EAD is equal to the current amount outstanding at the expected point of default in case of fixed exposures like 
staff loans and investment securities. This is derived using the original carrying amount, interest rate and tenor 
of the facility. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 

 
2.5 Financial assets and financial liabilities – continued 

 
2.5.6  Financial liabilities 

 
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables as well as borrowings. 

 
Subsequent measurement 
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss 
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) amortisation 
process. 
 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance cost in the consolidated and 
separate statements of profit or loss. 

 
2.5.7  Derecognition of financial liabilities/assets 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as 
a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss. 

 
A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 
is derecognised when: 
 
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Group has transferred its right to receive 
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material 
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either: (a) the Group has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 
 

 
2.5.8 Offsetting financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated and separate 
statements of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 
2.6 Trade receivables 

 
Trade, reinsurance and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition these are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect 
of discounting is immaterial. 
 
Individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other 
objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default. Trade receivables arising from 
insurance contracts are stated after deducting allowance made for specific debts considered doubtful of 
recovery. Impairment of trade receivables are presented within other operating expenses. 
 
Trade and Other receivables amounts are short-term. The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered 
a reasonable approximation of fair value. Trade receivables are reviewed at every reporting period for 
impairment.  
 

2.7 Other Receivables and Prepayments 

Other receivables and prepayments are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
2.7        Other Receivables and Prepayments 

 
2.7.1 Impairment of non-financial assets 

 
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the 
lowest levels for which there have separately identifiable cash inflows (cash-generating units). The impairment 
test also can be performed on a single asset when the fair value less cost to sell or the value in use can be 
determined reliably. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken 
into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 
 
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries 
or other available fair value indicators. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are 
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. Impairment losses recognized in prior 
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer 
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognized.   
 
The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared 
separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and 
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is 
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. 
 
 

2.8 Fair value measurement 
 

IFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the group. 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumption that market participant would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participant’s act in their economic best interest.   
 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 
All assets, liabilities and equity items for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
• Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 
• Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable.   
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 

 
2.8 Fair value measurement – Continued 

 
The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by 
reference to quoted market bid prices for assets and offer prices for liabilities, at the close of business on the 
reporting date, without any adjustment for transaction costs. 
 
For other financial instruments other than investment in equity instruments not traded in an active market, the fair 
value is determined by using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include the discounted cash 
flow method, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist and other relevant 
valuation models. 

 
Their fair value is determined using a valuation model that has been tested against prices or inputs to actual 
market transactions and using the Group’s best estimate of the most appropriate model assumptions. 
 
For discounted cash flow techniques, estimated future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates 
and the discount rate used is a market-related rate for a similar instrument. The use of different pricing models 
and assumptions could produce materially different estimates of fair values. 
 
The fair value of floating rate and overnight deposits with credit institutions is their carrying value. The carrying 
value is the cost of the deposit and accrued interest. The fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits is 
estimated using discounted cash flow techniques. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates 
for similar instruments at the reporting date. 

 
 
2.9 Reinsurance assets     

     
Reinsurance assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables 
that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsurance contracts. 
Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with 
the reinsurance contracts and in compliance with the terms of the reinsurance contract. The reinsurers' share 
of unearned premiums (i.e. the reinsurance assets) are recognised as an asset using principles consistent 
with the Company's method for determining unearned premium liability. The amount reflected on the statement 
of financial position is on a gross basis to indicate the extent of credit risk related to the reinsurance and its 
obligations to policy holders.     

 
The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment at each statement of financial position date. If there 
is objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the 
reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the statement of profit or 
loss. The Group gathers the objective evidence that a reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process 
adopted for financial assets held at amortised cost.   

 
2.10 Deferred acquisition costs (DAC)  
 

Commissions and other acquisition costs that are related to securing new contracts and renewing existing 
contracts are capitalised as Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC) if they are separately identifiable can be 
measured reliably and it’s probable that they will be recovered. All other acquisition costs are recognised as 
expenses when incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the life of the contracts in line with premium 
revenue using assumptions consistent with those used in calculating unearned premium. It is calculated by 
applying to the acquisition expenses the ratio of unearned premium to written premium. The DAC is tested for 
impairment annually and written down when it is not expected to be fully recovered.    
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
2.11 Investment properties  

    
Investment properties comprise of completed property and property under construction that are held by the 
Group to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both. 
 
 Investment properties are measured initially at their cost, including related transaction costs. Transaction 
costs include professional fees for legal services and other commissions to bring the properties to the condition 
necessary for them to be capable of operating. After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at 
fair value with any changes therein recognised in the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss.  
  
 
An external, independent valuer, having appropriate recognised professional qualifications, certified by the 
Financial Reporting Council (FRC) of Nigeria and with recent experience in the location and category of the 
Investment properties being valued, values the Company’s investment properties annually. Fair value is 
evaluated annually by an accredited external, independent valuer, applying a valuation model recommended 
by the International Valuation Standards Committee which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. 
 
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the property) is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period of the derecognition. 

 
2.12 Intangible assets   
   

Intangible assets comprise computer software purchase from third parties. They are measured at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Purchased computer software are capitalised 
on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring into use the specific software. These costs are amortised 
on straight line basis over the useful life of the asset.     
 
Amortisation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
life of the software, from the date that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software is 10years. 
The residual values and useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted if 
appropriate. An Intangible asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if 
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.     
     
The estimated useful live for the computer software is 10 years.  
 

2.13 Property, plant and equipment      

      
Recognition and measurement         
Items of property, plant and equipment (except land and buildings) are carried at cost less subsequent 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and equipment includes 
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Property, plant and equipment under 
construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. 

 
Subsequent costs         

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company 
and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment 
are recognised in the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss.  
 
Depreciation        
 
All property, plant and equipment (except land and buildings) are stated at historical cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method 
to allocate their cost or revalued amounts over their estimated useful lives.    
 
Depreciation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation begins when an asset is available 
for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is derecognised or classified as held-for-sale in 
accordance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held-for-Sale and Discontinued Operations.   
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2.13 Property, plant and equipment continued     

 
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative period are as follows:  

 
 Buildings      1%  
 Leasehold improvements     20%  
 Plant and Machinery     20%  
 Furniture, fittings and office equipment   10%  
 Computer equipment     10%  
 Motor vehicles      25% 
 
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted if 
appropriate. An asset’s carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

 

   
Revaluation of land and building         
Land is shown at fair value based on periodic valuations by external independent valuers less subsequent 
depreciation for buildings. Buildings are subsequently carried at revalued amount being the fair value at the 
date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment 
losses. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially 
from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period. When an individual 
property is revalued, any increase in its carrying amount (as a result of revaluation) is transferred to a 
revaluation reserve through OCI, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same 
property previously recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss. When the value of an individual 
property is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is charged against any related credit balance 
in the revaluation reserve through OCI in respect of that property. However, to the extent that it exceeds any 
surplus, it is recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss. 
 
De-recognition         

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefit is 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceed and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement 
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.  
         

2.14 Statutory deposit  

        
The Company's Statutory deposit represents the fixed deposit with the Central Bank of Nigeria in accordance 
with section 10(3) of the Insurance Act, 2003.The deposit is recognised at the cost in the statement of financial 
position being 10% of the statutory minimum capital requirement of N3 billion for General insurance business. 
Interest income on the deposit is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period the interest is 
earned.   
        

2.15 Insurance contract liabilities 
        

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. Insurance contracts are 
those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Such contracts may also transfer financial risk. These 
contracts include General accident, workmen’s compensation, motor, marine and aviation and fire insurance. 
     
Insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers against the risk of harm from unforeseen events to their 
properties resulting from their legitimate activities. The typical protection offered is designed for employers 
who become legally liable to pay compensation to injured employees (employers’ liability) and for individual 
and business customers who become liable to pay compensation to a third party for bodily harm or property 
damage (public liability).   
      
Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company's customers for damage suffered to their 
properties or for the value of property lost.  
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 

 
2.15 Insurance contract liabilities Continued 

 
Others forms of Insurance contracts include but are not limited to workmen’s compensation, motor, marine 
and aviation insurance.     
     
Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to profit or loss as incurred based on the estimated liability 
for compensation owed to contract holders or third parties for damaged incurred or lost suffered by the contract 
holders. They include direct and indirect claims settlement costs arising from events that have occurred up to 
the end of the reporting period even if they have not yet been reported to the Companies i.e. Claims incurred 
but not reported (IBNR) which is actuarial valuation. The Group does not discount its liabilities for unpaid 
claims other than for workmen compensation claims. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using the 
impute of assessments of provision reported to the Group and analysis for the claims incurred but not reported 
(IBNR).       

 
 
Reinsurance contracts held          

 The Group holds the under-noted reinsurance contracts:       

 Treaty Reinsurance Outward is usually between the Group and Reinsurers.    

 Facultative Reinsurance Outward is usually between the Group and other insurance companies or 
between the Group and Reinsurers.      

 Facultative reinsurance inwards is usually between the Group and other insurance Companies or 
between the Group and Reinsurers.   

    
Premiums due to the reinsurers are paid and all claims and recoveries due from reinsurers are received. 
Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for losses on one 
or more contracts issued by the Group and that meet the classification requirements for insurance contracts 
are classified as re-insurance contracts held while contracts that do not meet these classification requirements 
are classified as financial assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Group under which the contract 
holder is another insurer (inward re-insurance) are included within insurance contracts.   
  
The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its re-insurance contracts held are recognized as re-
insurance assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as long term 
receivables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured 
insurance contracts.  
 
Amount recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amount associated with the 
primary insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Re-insurance 
liabilities are primarily premiums payable for the reinsurance contracts and are recognized as an expense 
when due. The Company’s Insurance liabilities or balances arising from insurance contracts primarily include 
those insurance contract liabilities that were valued by the Actuaries. These include unearned premiums 
reserve and outstanding claim reserve.   
 
Reserve for unearned premium 

In compliance with Section 20 (1) (a) of Insurance Act 2003, the reserve for unearned premium is calculated 
on a time apportionment basis in respect of the risks accepted during the year. 
 
Reserve for outstanding claims 

The reserve for outstanding claims is maintained at the total amount of outstanding claims incurred and 
reported plus claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) as at the reporting date. The IBNR is based on the 
liability adequacy test. 
 
Reserves for unexpired risk 
A provision for additional unexpired risk reserve (AURR) is recognised for an underwriting year where it is 
envisaged that the estimated cost of claims and expenses would exceed the unearned premium reserve 
(UPR). 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
2.15 Insurance contract liabilities Continued 

 
Liability adequacy test 
At the end of each reporting period, Liability Adequacy Tests are performed to ensure that material and 
reasonably foreseeable losses arising from existing contractual obligations are recognised. In performing 
these tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows, claims handling and administration 
expenses, investment income backing such liabilities are considered. Long-term insurance contracts are 
measured based on assumptions set out at the inception of the contract. Any deficiency is charged to profit or 
loss by increasing the carrying amount of the related insurance liabilities. 
 
Salvage and subrogation reimbursements         
Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usually damaged) property acquired in settling a claim 
(for example, salvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or 
all costs (for example, subrogation). Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the 
measurement of the insurance liability for claims, and salvage property is recognized in other assets when the 
liability is settled. The allowance is the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the 
property.  
 
Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability 
for claims and are recognized in other assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is the assessment of 
the amount that can be recovered from the action against the liable third party.      
      

2.16 Trade payables        

 
Trade payables (i.e. insurance payables) are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the 
fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Trade payables 
include payables to agents and brokers, payables to reinsurance companies, payables to coinsurance 
companies and commission payable.            
 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of the financial liabilities and of 

allocating interest expenses over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 

discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liabilities, or (where 

appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.      

The fair value of a non-interest bearing liability is its discounted repayment amount. If the due date of the 
liability is less than one year discounting is omitted. Trade payables are derecognised when the obligation 
under the liability is settled, cancelled or expired.  

  
2.17 Provisions and other payables  
       

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation.  
      
Provisions are measured at the Director's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at 
the end of the reporting period. The provisions are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and adjusted to 
reflect the current best estimate.   
 
Other payables are recognised initially at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
effective interest method. They comprise of other short-term monetary liabilities such as professional fees 
payable, insurance levy payable, and staff pension liability.   
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED      
 
2.18 Retirement obligations and employee benefits 

 
The Group operates the following contribution and benefit schemes for its employees: 
 
Defined contribution pension scheme 

The Group operates a defined contributory pension scheme for eligible employees. Employers and employees 
contribute 10% and 8% respectively of the employees' Basic, Housing and Transport allowances in line with 
the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2014. The Company pays the contributions to a pension fund 
administrator. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The 
contributions are recognised as employee benefits expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are 
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.  

 
Short-term benefits 

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are recognised as employee benefit 
expenses and paid in arrears when the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Company. 
   

 
 
2.19 Taxes 
 

Current income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are 
those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date in Nigeria.  Current income tax assets 
and liabilities also include adjustments for tax expected to be payable or recoverable in respect of previous 
periods. 
 
Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income is recognized 
in equity or other comprehensive income and not in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income. 
 
Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 
 
- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

 
In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of 
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences 
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except: 
 
When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 

associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is 
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available 
against which the temporary differences can be utilized. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset 
to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to 
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered.  

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
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2.19 Taxes - Continued 

 
Deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized 
outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.  
 

2.20 Borrowings  

 
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 
value is recognised in statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as a transaction cost of the loan to 
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred 
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent that there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the 
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over 
the period of the facility to which it relates. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company 
has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabilities for at least twelve months after the date of 
the statement of financial position.  

 
2.21 Deposit for share 
        

Deposit for share is recognised at cost, being the amount of deposit received from potential shareholders of 
the Company. The deposit is derecognised when the Company's equity instruments have been issued to the 
depositors or refund made.   
      

2.22 Share capital     
   

The issued ordinary shares of the Company are classified as equity instruments. Incremental costs directly 
attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial measurement of the equity 
instruments.   

 
2.23 Dividends on ordinary share capital 
 

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved 
by the Company’s shareholders. Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting date are dealt 
with as an event after the reporting date. Thus, such dividends are only disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements. 

 
2.24 Share premium 

 
This represents the excess amount paid by shareholders on the nominal value of the shares. This amount is 
distributable to the shareholders at their discretion. The share premium is classified as an equity instrument 
in the statement of financial position. 
 

2.25 Contingency reserve  
       

In compliance with Section 21(2) of Insurance Act, CAP I17 LFN 2004, contingency reserve is credited with 
the greater of 3% of total premium, or 20% of the net profits. This shall accumulate until it reaches the amount 
of greater of minimum paid-up capital or 50 percent of net premium.  

             
2.26 Accumulated losses 

 
Accumulated losses comprise the undistributed (losses)/profits from previous years, which have not been 
reclassified to the other equity reserves. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
2.27 Premiums and unearned premiums 

 

Premiums written comprise the premiums on contracts incepting in the financial year. Premiums written are 
stated gross of commissions’ payable to agents and exclusive of taxes levied on premiums. The Company 
earns premium income evenly over the term of the insurance policy generally using the pro rata method. The 
portion of the premium related to the unexpired portion of the policy at the end of the fiscal year is reflected in 
unearned premiums.  

 
2.28 Reinsurance expenses    

    
Reinsurance expenses represent outward premium paid to reinsurance companies less the unexpired portion 
as at the end of the accounting year.      

 
2.29 Commission income          

 
Commissions earned are recognised on ceding businesses to reinsurers and other insurance companies and 
are credited to the statement of profit or loss.  

 
2.30 Claims expenses  
    

Claims expenses incurred consist of claims and claims handling expenses paid by the Company during the 
financial year together with the movement in the provision for outstanding claims. (See the accounting policy 
for reserve for outstanding claims above). The gross provision for claims represents the estimated liability 
arising from claims in the current and preceding financial years which have not yet given rise to claims paid. 
The provision includes an allowance for claims management and handling expenses.      
  
The gross provision for claims is estimated based on current information and the ultimate liability may vary as 
a result of subsequent information and events and may result in significant adjustments to the amounts 
provided. Adjustments to the amounts of claims provision for prior years are reflected in the statement of profit 
or loss in the financial period in which adjustments are made and disclosed separately if material.  
      

2.31 Acquisition costs  
     

Acquisition costs represent commissions and other expenses related to the acquisition of insurance contract 
revenues written during the financial year.       

 
2.32 Maintenance expenses   
   

Maintenance expenses are expenses incurred in servicing existing policies/contract. These expenses are 
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.  
     

2.33 Investment income  
        

This includes interest income and dividend income. Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the effective interest rate method. Fees and commissions that 
are an integral part of the effective yield of the financial asset or liability are recognised as an adjustment to 
the effective interest rate of the instrument. Dividend income from equity investment is recognised when the 
right to receive payment is established.  
       

2.34 Management expenses        

 
Management expenses are expenses other than claims, investment expenses, employee benefits, expenses 
for marketing and administration and underwriting expenses. They include wages, professional fee, 
depreciation expenses and other non-operating expenses. Management expenses are accounted for on 
accrual basis and recognized in the statement of profit or loss upon utilization of the service or at the date of 
their origin.     
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
2.35 Losses per share 

 
 The Group presents basic earnings/losses per share (EPS/LPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS/LPS 

is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted 

average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the 

profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares 

outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.   

2.36   Significant judgements, estimates and assumption 

 
2.36.1 Judgement 

The preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements requires management to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities, income and expenses.  
 
Going Concern 
The Company’s total liabilities exceeded its total assets by N10.53 billion (2018: N11.80 billion) while the 
Group’s total liabilities exceeded its total assets by N10.59 billion (2018: N11.87 billion). In addition, the 
Company's negative total equity as at December 31 2019 of N10.53 billion (2018: N11.80 billion) is below the 
minimum regulatory requirement of N3 billion and the Company did not meet the regulatory solvency margin 
whilst there was a shortfall of N2.24 billion (2018: N2.21 billion) in the assets cover. The Company recorded 
a negative operating cash flow of N85 million (2018: N677 million) while the Group recorded a negative 
operating cash flow of N53 million (2018: N742 million). The Company no longer carries out oil and gas line 
of business and this led to its declining revenue over the years.  
 
These conditions give rise to a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group and the 
Company’s ability to continue as going concern therefore they may be unable to realize their assets and 
discharge their liabilities in the normal course of business. 
 
Management plans to recapitalize the Company. The recapitalization of the business will be achieved through 
the injection of Funds by potential investors. The Company is discussing with prospective investors. However, 
if the Company gets an investor, it is estimated that the timing of completion of the recapitalization process 
may take about 6 months because of the logistics around capital raising for a listed and regulated Company. 
The success of this plan will potentially lead to a turnaround of the Company’s performance from adverse 
regulatory ratios, losses and inadequate liquidity to improved market share, cash flows and liquidity. In 
addition, the Company may then be able to meet the minimum regulatory capital requirements of NAICOM 
and thus be able to re-commence its oil and gas line of businesses. In addition, Management has put in place 
plans to improve on its retail business base by exploring new opportunities that may improve its revenues and 
performance. Specifically, some of the plan are leveraging on personal relationships and opportunities created 
by the Government on compulsory insurance to increase its reach and spread. The Company plans to achieve 
this by retaining its existing clients and selling permissible services to clients in new locations across the 
country through strategic partnership with other insurance and insurance brokerage firms. The Company plans 
to optimize its cost by converting some of its branches to office representatives. 
 
The consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared on the basis that the Group and the 
Company will continue to be a going concern. This basis of preparation is dependent on the presumption of 
the ability of the Company to comply with the minimum regulatory capital requirement and the solvency margin 
requirement as well as its ability to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the ordinary course of 
business. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and timing of 
future taxable income. Differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future 
changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already 
recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of 
audits by the tax authorities. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors such as experience 
of previous tax audits and differing interpretations by the taxable entity. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 

 
2.36   Significant judgements, estimates and assumption - continued 

 
2.36.1 Judgement - continued 
  Deferred tax liabilities - continued 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to 
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based on the likely timing and the level 
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value at the reporting date 
of deferred tax assets/liability is disclosed in Note 16. 

 
2.36.2 Estimates and assumption 

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the 
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. The estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information about significant 
areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described below: 

 
Valuation of investment properties 
The valuation of the properties is based on the price for which comparable land and properties are being 
exchanged or are being marketed for sale. Therefore, the market-approach method of valuation is used;  
this reflects existing use with recourse to comparison approach that is the analysis of recent sale transaction 
on similar properties in the neighbourhood. The best price that subsisting interest in the property will 
reasonably be expected to be sold if made available for sale by private treaty between willing seller and buyer 
under competitive market condition. "Further details can be found in Note 8." 

 

Impairment on receivables 
In accordance with the accounting policy, the Company tests annually whether premium receivables have suffered 
any impairment. The recoverable amounts of the premium receivables have been determined based on the 
incurred loss model. These calculations required the use of estimates based on passage of time and probability 
of recovery. "Further details can be found in Note 3". 

 
Insurance contract liabilities 
For non-life insurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims 
reported at the reporting date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred, but not yet reported, at 
the reporting date. It can take a significant period of time before the ultimate claims cost can be established 
with certainty and for some type of policies, IBNR claims form a significant part of the liability in the statement 
of financial position.  
 
The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection 
techniques, such as Chain Ladder method. The main assumption underlying these techniques is that a 
Company’s past claims development experience can be used to project future claims development and hence 
ultimate claims costs. As such, these methods extrapolate the development of paid and incurred losses, 
average costs per claim and claim numbers based on the observed development of earlier years and expected 
loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years, but can also be further 
analysed by geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are 
usually separately addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or 
separately projected in order to reflect their future development. In most cases, no explicit assumptions are 
made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are those implicit 
in the historical claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgment 
is used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, (e.g., to reflect one-off occurrences, 
changes in external or market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic conditions, levels of 
claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy 
features and claims handling procedures) in order to arrive at the estimated ultimate cost of claims that present 
the likely outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking account of all the uncertainties involved. 
"Further details can be found in Note 12." 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
2.36   Significant judgements, estimates and assumption - continued 

 
2.36.2 Estimates and assumption Continued 

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
The Group measures land and buildings at revalued amounts with changes in fair value being recognised in 
other comprehensive income. The Group engaged an independent valuation specialist to assess fair value as 
at December 31 2018. Land and buildings were valued by reference to market-based evidence, using 
comparable prices adjusted for specific market factors such as nature, location and condition of the property. 

 
Impairment losses on financial assets 
The measurement of impairment losses both under IFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets in scope 

requires judgment the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when 

determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. 

The measurement of impairment losses both under IFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets in scope 

requires judgment the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when 

determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. 

 

i. S&P credit grading model of obligors which assigns PDs to the individual grades. 

ii. The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances 

for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment. 

iii. Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs. 

iv. Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as 

unemployment rates, inflation rate, GDP growth rate and crude oil price, and the effect on PDs, EADs and 

LGDs. 

v. Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the 

economic inputs into the ECL models. 

 

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and 

adjust when necessary. 

 

The determination of whether a financial asset is credit impaired focuses exclusively on default risk, without 

taking into consideration the effect of credit risk mitigants such as collateral or guarantees. Specifically, the 

financial asset is credit impaired and in stage 3 when: The Company considers the obligor is unlikely to pay 

its credit obligations to the Company. The termination may include forbearance actions, where a concession 

has been granted to the borrower or economic or legal reasons that a qualitative indicators of credit 

impairment; or contractual payments of either principal or interest by the obligor are pass due by more than 

90 days. 

 

For financial assets considered to be credit impaired, the ECL allowance covers the amount of loss the 

Company is expected to suffer. The estimation of ECLs is done on a case by case basis for non-homogenous 

portfolios, or by applying portfolio-based parameters to individual financial assets in this portfolio by the 

Company’s ECL model for homogenous portfolios. 

 
Forecast of future economic conditions when calculating ECLs are considered. The lifetime expected losses 
are estimated based on the probability – weighted present value of the difference between: 

1) The contractual cash flows that are due to the Company under the contract; and 

2) The cash flows that the Company expects to receive. 

Elements of ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include: 
 
• The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances 
for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment 
 
• The development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs Determination of 
associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment levels and 
collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs 
 

• Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the 

economic inputs into the ECL models. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
2.36   Significant judgements, estimates and assumption - continued 

 

2.36.2 Estimates and assumption Continued 
Expected lifetime 

The expected life time of a financial asset is a key factor in determine the life time expected credit losses. 

Lifetime expected credit losses represents default events over the expected life of a financial asset. The 

Company measures expected credit losses considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual 

period (including any borrower’s extension option) over which it is exposed to credit risk. 

 

Fair value of financial instruments using valuation techniques 

The Directors use their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique. Where possible, financial 

instruments are fmarked at prices quoted in active markets. In the current market environment, such price 

information is typically not available for all instruments and the Company uses valuation techniques to 

measure such instruments. These techniques use “market observable inputs” where available, derived from 

similar assets in similar and active markets, from recent transaction prices for comparable items or from other 

observable market data. For positions where observable reference data are not available for some or all 

parameters the Company estimates the non-market observable inputs used in its valuation models. 

 
Other financial instruments are valued using a discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions 

supported, where possible, by observable market prices or rates although some assumptions are not 

supported by observable market prices or rates. 

 

3. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures  
 

New and amended standards and interpretations 

In these financial statements, the Group has applied IFRS 9, IFRS 7R (Revised) and IFRS 15 effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after l January 2019, for the first lime. The Group has not early adopted any 
other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.  

 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments  

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) with a 
transition date of 1 January 2019. IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 for annual periods on or after 1 January 2019. The 
Group has not restated comparative information for 2017 for financial instruments in the scope of IFRS 9. 
Therefore, the comparative information for 2019 is report under IAS 39 and is not comparable to the 
information presented for 2019. Differences arising from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been recognised directly 
in accumulated losses as of 1 January 2019 and are disclosed in Note 23. 

 
Changes to classification and measurement  

To determine their classification and measurement category, IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except equity 
instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the entity's business model for 
managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics. 
The IAS 39 measurement categories of financial assets {fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), available for 
sale (AFS), held to maturity and loans and receivables} have been replaced by: 

 Debt instrument at amortised cost 

 Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), with gains or losses recycled to 

profit or loss on derecognition 

 Equity instruments at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or loss on derecognition 

 Financial assets FVPL 

The accounting for financial liabilities remains largely the same as it was under IAS 39. The Group’s 
classification of its financial assets and liabilities is explained in Notes 2.5. The quatitative impact of applying 
IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2019 is disclosed in Note 23. 
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3.  Changes in accounting policies and disclosures - continued 
 

Changes to the impairment calculation 

 
The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group's accounting for loss impairments by 
replacing IAS 39's incurred loss approach (with the exception of insurance related assets which is not within 
the scope of IFRS 9 just yet) with a forward looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS 9 requires 
the Group to record an allowance for ECLs for loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL. The 
allowance is based on the ECLs associated with the probability of default in the next twelve months unless 
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination. 
 
Details of the Group's impairment method are disclosed in Note2.5. The quantitative impact of applying 
IFRS9 as at 1 January 2019 is disclosed in Note23. 

 
IFRS 7 Revised (IFRS 7R) 

 
To reflect me differences between IFRS 9 and IAS 39, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures was 
updated, and the Group has adopted it, together with IFRS 9, for the year beginning 1 January 2019. 
Changes include transition disclosures as shown in Note 5, detailed qualitative and qualitative information 
about the ECL calculations such as the assumptions and inputs used are set out in Note 2.S (note on 
significant estimates) and Note 2.5 to the financial statements. 
Reconciliations from opening to closing ECL allowances are presented in Notes 5 (transition disclosures). 
 
IFRS 25 Revenue from contracts with customers 

 
The Group adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers on its effective date of 1 January 2019.  
IFRS is replaces IAS 18 Revenue and establishes a five step model to account for revenue arising from 
contracts with customers. It applies to all contracts with customers except leases, financial instruments and 
insurance contracts. 
 
The standard establishes a more systematic approach tor revenue measurement and recognition by 
introducing a five-step model governing revenue recognition. The five-step model requires the Group to (i) 
identify the contract with the customer, (ii) identify each of the performance obligations included in the contract, 
(iii) determine the amount of consideration in the contract, (iv) allocate the consideration to each of the 
identified performance obligations and (v) recognise revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied. 
 
There are no significant impacts from the adoption of IFRS 15 in relation to the timing of when the Company 
recognises revenues or when revenue should be recognised gross as a principal or net as an agent. Therefore, 
International Energy Insurance Pic will continue to recognise fee and commission income charged for services 
provided by the Company as the services are provided (for example on completion of the underlying 
transaction). Revenue recognition tor trading income and net investment Income are recoqnised based on 
requirements of IFRS 9. In addition, guidance on interest and dividend Income has been moved from IAS 18 
to IFRS9 without significant changes to the requirements. 

 
IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations 

 
The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the 
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability relating to advance consideration the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity 
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. 
If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the date of the 
transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. This interpretation did not have any 
impact on the Group's financial statements. 

 
Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property 

 
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or 
development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the 
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change 
in use. A mere Change in management's intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a 
change in use. These amendments did not have any impact on the Group's financial statements. 
 

 

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures - continued 
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Changes to the impairment calculation 
 
Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts 

 
The amendments address concerns arising from implementing the new financial instruments standard, IFRS 9, 
before implementing IFRS 17 insurance Contracts, which replaces IFRS 4. The amendments introduce two options 
for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 and an overlay approach. 
These amendments are not relevant to the Group as it has already adopted IFRS 9 in 2019. 
 
Other standards that became effective during the year but have no impact on the Group's financial statements 
 
• Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions 
• Amendments to IAS 28 investments in Associates and Joint ventures - Clarification that measuring 
• Investees at fair value through profit or loss is an investment-by-Investment choice 
• Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards - Deletion of short-term 
exemptions· for first-time adopters 
 

4.        Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective - continued 
         IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance 
contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure, which replaces IFRS 4 Insurance 
Contracts. 
  
In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies 
for measurement purposes, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model (the general model) for insurance contracts, 
supplemented by the variable fee approach for contracts with direct participation features that are substantially 
investment-related service contracts, and the premium allocation approach mainly for short- duration which typically 
applies to certain non-life insurance contracts. 
 

The main features of the new accounting model for insurance contracts are, as follows: 
•The measurement of the present value of future cash flows, incorporating an explicit risk adjustment, remeasured 
every reporting period (the fulfilment cash flows); 
•A Contractual Service Margin (CSM) that is equal and opposite to any day one gain in the fulfilment cashflows of a 
group of contracts. The CSM represents the unearned profitability of the insurance contracts and is recognised in profit 
or loss over the service period (i.e., coverage period); 
•Certain changes in the expected present value of future cash flows are adjusted against the CSM and thereby 
recognised in profit or loss over the remaining contractual service period; 
•The effect of changes in discount rates will be reported in either profit or loss or other comprehensive income, 
determined by an accounting policy choice; 
•The recognition of insurance revenue and insurance service expenses in the statement of comprehensive income 
based on the concept of services provided during the period; 
•Amounts that the policyholder will always receive, regardless of whether an insured event happens (non-distinct 
investment components) are not presented in the income statement, but are recognized directly on the statement of 
financial position; 
•Insurance services results (earned revenue less incurred claims) are presented separately from the insurance finance 
income or expense; 
•Extensive disclosures to provide information on the recognized amounts from insurance contracts and the nature and 
extent of risks arising from these contracts. 

 
IFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with comparative figures 
required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it 
first applies IFRS 17. Retrospective application is required.  

 
However, if full retrospective application for a group of insurance contracts is impracticable, then the entity is required 
to choose either a modified retrospective approach or a fair value approach. 

 
The Group started a project to implement IFRS 17 and has been performing a high-level impact assessment of IFRS 
17. The Group expects that the new standard will result in an important change to the accounting policies for insurance 
contract liabilities of the Group and is likely to have a significant impact on profit and total equity together with 
presentation and disclosure. 
 
(i) IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment 
The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the 
application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include 
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. 
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The Interpretation specifically addresses the following: 

 Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately 

 The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities 

 How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax 
rates 

 How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances 
 
(i) IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment - continued 
An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more 
other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed. 
The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but certain transition 
reliefs are available. The amendment did not have any impact on the group financial Statements. 

 
(ii) Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle (issued in December 2017) 
 
IAS 12 Income Taxes 
The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions 
or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity recognises the income 
tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity 
originally recognised those past transactions or events. 
  

An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early 
application is permitted. When an entity first applies those amendments, it applies them to the income tax 
consequences of dividends recognised on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period. Since the Group’s 
current practice is in line with these amendments, the Group does not expect any effect on its consolidated financial 
statements. 

 
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs 
The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a 
qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are 
complete. 

 
An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period 
in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early application permitted. Since the Group’s current practice is in line with 
these amendments, the Group does not expect any effect on its financial statements. 

 
(iii) Other amendments to standards, which currently do not apply to the Group are listed below: 

- Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 
- Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or 

Joint Venture 
- Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 
- Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures 
- IFRS 3: Business combination- Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle 
- IFRS 11: Joint Arrangements- Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle 
- IFRS 16- Leases 
- IFRS 17- Insurance Contracts 
- Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts – Amendments to IFRS 4 
- Definition of a Business – Amendments to IFRS 3 
- Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material 
- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7. 
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